
 
COMMISSIONERS: TO ASSIST WITH ESTABLISHING QUORUMS REQUIRED TO CONDUCT MEETINGS,  

PLEASE CONTACT THE PLANNING DEPARTMENT IF YOU ARE UNABLE TO ATTEND A SCHEDULED MEETING.  
2025_03-31 Ellington Planning & Zoning Commission Regular Meeting Agenda   

 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

MONDAY, MARCH 31, 2025, 7:00 PM 
IN-PERSON ATTENDANCE: TOWN HALL ANNEX, 57 MAIN STREET, ELLINGTON, CT 

REMOTE ATTENDANCE: ZOOM MEETING, INSTRUCTIONS PROVIDED BELOW 
I. CALL TO ORDER: 
II. PUBLIC COMMENTS (on non-agenda items): 

III. PUBLIC HEARING: (Notice requirements met, hearings may commence.) 
1. Z202501 - West Meadow Associates, LLC, owner/Kimberly Newman-Savino (The Revival Room), 

applicant, pursuant to Table 4.1 Permitted Uses & Uses Requiring Special Permit in Commercial & 
Industrial Zones request for Special Permit to allow a personal service business at 106 West Road, APN 
028-011-0000, in a Planned Commercial (PC) zone. 

 
2. Z202502 - R&S Gerber Construction, LLC, owner/ applicant, request for modifications to Site Plan and 

Special Permit to construct an 80x100 addition at 1 Nutmeg Drive, APN 017-022-0008, in an Industrial (I) 
zone.  

 
3. Z2020503 - Town of Ellington, owner/ Ellington Planning & Zoning Commission, applicant, for proposed 

Zoning Regulation Amendments to reflect the updated Connecticut Guidelines for Soil Erosion and 
Sediment Control and include Low Impact Development Standards. 
 

IV. NEW BUSINESS: (For receipt and scheduling of public hearing.) 
1. Z202504 – Town of Ellington, owner / Ellington Little League, applicant, request for modification to Special 

Permit to extend lighting hours for field M2 on Fridays and Saturdays from 9:00 pm to 10:00 pm, 45 Sadds 
Mill Road, APN 079-004-0000, in a Rural Agricultural Residential (RAR) zone.  

2. Z202505 – Gale Construction Inc., owner/Gregory J. Gale, applicant, request for Special Permit for earth 
excavation, screening, and crushing of concrete and asphalt materials at 90 Sadds Mill Road, APN 079-
002-0000 in a RAR (Rural Agricultural Residential) Zone.  

3. Z202506 – Kayder Properties, LLC, owner/Syn-mar Products, Inc., applicant, request for modifications to 
Site Plan and Special Permit to construct a 12,012-sf addition, parking/loading area, and associated site 
improvements at 5 Nutmeg Drive, APN 017-022-0007 in an Industrial (I) zone.  

V. ADMINISTRATIVE BUSINESS: 
1. Approval of February 24, 2025, Regular Meeting Minutes. 
2. Election of Officers. 
3. Correspondence/Discussion: 

a. Ellington Affordable Housing Plan and Discussion Regarding Ellington Zoning Regulation 3.6 Designed 
Multi-Family Zone and 3.6.7 Workforce Housing Provision. 
 

VI. ADJOURNMENT:  
Next Regular Meeting is scheduled for April 28, 2025. 

 
Instructions to attend meeting remotely listed below. The agenda is posted on the Town of Ellington webpage (www.ellington-
ct.gov) under Agenda & Minutes, Planning & Zoning Commission. 

Join Zoom Meeting via link:    Join Zoom Meeting by phone: 
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/86714814549   1 646 558 8656 
Meeting ID: 867 1481 4549    Meeting ID: 867 1481 4549 
Passcode: 915976     Passcode: 915976 

 

 
STATE OF CONNECTICUT – COUNTY OF TOLLAND 

INCORPORATED 1786 

TOWN OF ELLINGTON 
55 MAIN STREET – PO BOX 187 

ELLINGTON, CONNECTICUT  06029-0187 
www.ellington-ct.gov 

 
TEL. (860) 870-3120       TOWN PLANNER’S OFFICE       FAX (860) 870-3122 

 

http://www.ellington-ct.gov/














From: kim therevivalroom.com
To: Barbra Galovich
Subject: RE: Ellington Staff review Z202501 - 106 West Road
Date: Thursday, March 20, 2025 9:53:22 PM
Attachments: image001.png

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open
attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Hi Barbra,
 
Hope you enjoyed your trip to Colorado!
 
Thank you for sending this over. For some reason, I didn’t see this email until tonight.
 
We will not be using the water at 106 West Road for drinking water. It will only be used for
cleaning, sanitizing, and laundry. We will be providing a water cooler and use a water
delivery company for the drinking water. The well water will not be consumed.
I’m not sure if that matters in this process.
 
Can you advise me on who makes the call as to whether the new use will be consider a
public water system?
 
Thank you,
 
Kim Newman-Savino, CEO, Personal Trainer, 500 RYT, FNTP, Health Coach
Revival Room Yoga & Fitness, LLC

 
From: Barbra Galovich <bgalovich@ELLINGTON-CT.GOV> 
Sent: Tuesday, March 18, 2025 2:13 PM
To: kim therevivalroom.com <kim@therevivalroom.com>
Cc: Lisa Houlihan <LHoulihan@ELLINGTON-CT.GOV>
Subject: FW: Ellington Staff review Z202501 - 106 West Road
 
Kim,
 
Hope this email finds you well.  Please see the below comments from Wes @ North Central
District Health Department.
 
Best regards,
Barbra
 
Barbra Galovich, CZET
Ellington Planning Department
57 Main Street

mailto:kim@therevivalroom.com
mailto:bgalovich@ELLINGTON-CT.GOV
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2ftherevivalroom.com&c=E,1,bw2GYs6b24rZrPsq2XvI0H8X-Ks28ZEsZ8sd8bqnq_Dx3jxEHAmhDYxAcxCcnZw7GbAW_aoyz8ChjapoJRvenhPHq9dmIjF3HNK76KjJy0x3vpwz&typo=1&ancr_add=1






Ellington, CT  06029
(860)870-3120, Option 1
 
From: Westford Lirot <wlirot@ncdhd.org> 
Sent: Tuesday, March 18, 2025 12:29 PM
To: Barbra Galovich <bgalovich@ELLINGTON-CT.GOV>
Subject: RE: Ellington Staff review Z202501 - 106 West Road
 
CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or
open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.
 
Barbra,
Comments regarding the use:
Since the building is served by a private well additional review will be required by NCDHD
including a public water system screening, if the future use is not considered a public water
system type, then a minimum of a current certified water test indicating the well water is
considered potable will be required for review.
The proposed floor plan does appear to include needed sanitary equipment items such as
hand sinks for the private treatment rooms, a separate dedicated utility sink and a
dedicated restroom.
Thank you,
Wes  
 
Westford Lirot, B.S. R.S.
Registered Sanitarian
North Central District Health Department
Stafford Field Office
(O) 860-684-5609
(Fax) 860-684-1768
Enfield Office
860-745-0383
www.ncdhd.org
 

 
From: Barbra Galovich <bgalovich@ELLINGTON-CT.GOV> 
Sent: Tuesday, March 11, 2025 8:02 AM

mailto:wlirot@ncdhd.org
mailto:bgalovich@ELLINGTON-CT.GOV
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=http%3a%2f%2fwww.ncdhd.org%2f&c=E,1,8Ze7xSqo1HYGH2dvTSELJdYZTh8-8lrEaYQA4EWK9WUiFSRwBhtLZi_lIRJnMCiRobgRgPGf-813tw3JQf5OifVDLni2TMLVzwcMxY2DCo5a0G4rrRkwGEpK&typo=1
mailto:bgalovich@ELLINGTON-CT.GOV


From: Barbra Galovich
To: kim@therevivalroom.com
Cc: Lisa Houlihan
Subject: FW: Revive Massage & Wellness, 106 West Road - Health Department Comments
Date: Monday, March 24, 2025 10:17:00 AM
Attachments: Outlook-ujfghubm

Hi Kim,
 
Hope you had a great weekend.  John Colonese, Zoning Enforcement Officer, forwarded
the below comments from Brian Bielawiec of North Central District Health Dept.  Please call
Brian or Wes with any additional questions.
 
Best regards,
Barbra
 
Barbra Galovich, CZET
Ellington Planning Department
57 Main Street
Ellington, CT  06029
(860)870-3120, Option 1
 
From: Brian Bielawiec <BBielawiec@ncdhd.org> 
Sent: Wednesday, March 19, 2025 6:13 PM
To: John Colonese <jcolonese@ELLINGTON-CT.GOV>
Cc: Westford Lirot <wlirot@ncdhd.org>
Subject: Revive Massage & Wellness, 106 West Road - Health Department Comments
 
CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or
open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.
 
Good evening John,
 
The North Central District Health Department (NCDHD) has the following comments
regarding the proposed Revive Massage & Wellness at 106 West Road:
 

Massage and massage therapy are services that are not regulated under the
NCDHD's cosmetology code. Therefore, a plan review by NCDHD is not
required and a cosmetology license to operate from the NCDHD is not required.

The building is served by public sewer and a private onsite well. Since the
property is served by a water supply well Kimberly Newman-Savino is required
to do the following:

Complete the State of Connecticut Department of Public Health Public
Water Screening Form and submit it with all necessary supporting
documents to the Connecticut Department of Public Health Drinking Water
Section. The Water Supply Section will determine if the property and
business is a public water system or not.

mailto:bgalovich@ELLINGTON-CT.GOV
mailto:kim@therevivalroom.com
mailto:LHoulihan@ELLINGTON-CT.GOV
mailto:BBielawiec@ncdhd.org
mailto:jcolonese@ELLINGTON-CT.GOV
mailto:wlirot@ncdhd.org

5

Please be advised, effective 9/4/23 our
new Enfield Office business hours are
as follows...

M-W 8:00am - 5:30 pm
Th 8:00 am - 7:00 pm
F8:30 am - 12:30 pm

It is recommended you call in advance to
schedule meetings with our staff by

@ contacting 860-745-0383.






The determination of a public water system is a necessary step and
required prior to opening the business. 

 Should anyone have any questions or need anything additional, Wes and I are reachable by
phone or email. 

Brian

Brian D. Bielawiec, M.P.H. , R.S.
Registered Sanitarian III
North Central District Health Department
31 North Main Street
Enfield, CT 06082
Phone: 860-745-0383, extension 114
Fax: 860-745-3188
email: bbielawiec@ncdhd.org

      

____________________________________________________________________________
_

 

 

https://urldefense.com/v3/__http:/www.ncdhd.org/__;!!K_vE5lA!sakyyS06FogFsHAyAScSQ5t1sYE48MMPHYsi-S2DkAQ1Cxn-Ceq0KMLom7DgoUpmGPiRYvSoqlM2y0-LYfzlIhfDSSc$
mailto:bbielawiec@ncdhd.org


'fl t-/ l o ---

Town of Ellington 
Planning & Zoning Commission Application 

Application# 
Type of Application: □Zone Change □Amendment to Regulation 2 .;J. {J J-S7J J_ 

;Kl Site Plan Approval {R( Special Permit X Modification D CGS 8-24 Da!J Received
�1 oh b1J;2 !)

--

Notices associated with this application will be sent to the applicant, 
if different than the owner, unless otherwise requested. 

Owner's Information 

Name f,. � 5 c�rt_bli11__ {;3,4, ()v,

Mailing / J 1 7 J\. r Add,ess 

;;;;:;e I.,) c.,_/- O O t/ 2, �

Email: /{t)N (. G-kt!>F-fl...Cvivs7flc.fJ"t1hnc, ClllV\_

WHEN NOT REQUIRED BY LAW TO MAJL NOTICE BY USPS, 
MAY NOTICES BE EMAILED TO YOU? �es □No 

Primary Contact Phone #: <:f b cl - ?7 s· - { 6 lf" LJ

Secondary Contact Phone #: ?6 () - (II - )I 't I__

Signature: � Date: Z ,J S:-7 oLJ
� 

By signing below I certify that all information submitted with this application 
is true and accurate to the best of my knowledge, that I am aware of and 
understand the application requirements and regulations, and 
acknowledge that the application is to be considered complete only when 
all information and documents required by the Commission have been 
submitted. Moreover, by signing above I/we expressly provide written 
consent to the filing of the application and access to the site by the 
Commission or its staff. 

Street Address: / ;V tdme0 Dnve

Notices associated with this application will be sent to the applicant, 
if different than the owner, unless otherwise requested. 

Applicant's Information (if different than owner) 

Name: 

Mailing 
Address: 

Email: 
WHEN NOT REQUIRED BY LAW TO MAIL NOTICE BY USPS, 
MAY NOTICES BE EMAILED TO YOU? □Yes □No 

Primary Contact Phone#: _____________ _ 

Secondary Contact Phone#: ____________ _ 

Signature: Date: ____ _ 

By signing below I certify that all information submitted with this application 
is true and accurate to the best of my knowledge, that I am aware of and 
understand the application requirements and regulations, and 
acknowledge that the application is to be co��ered...9�Jllf�� only when 
all information and documents required byf1h'l=t Dimiils'sRD{Jiave been 
submitted. 

r l ll ; (J l Olb 

J 
9'"" 

Assessor's Parcel Number (APN): 0/ 7 - 0 2 Z.. - t'OO D
(If unaware of APN, please ask staff for assistance) 

lUw,-. u,- t:LLll�l.>IUN 

P!,,,ANNING OEP/IIUMENT 

Existing Zone: ..J: Proposed Zone: /1/)4
(If none, insert "N/A") 

Public Water: 11{ Yes D No Public Sewer:_t,;:l Yes D No 
application to North Central District Health Department (Enfield Office). 

If not served by public water and sewer. applicant/owner shall make 

Is parcel within 500' to any municipal boundary? D Yes� No 
Are there any wetlands/watercourses within 100' of construction activity or within 250' of wetlands/watercourses 
when located in the Shenipsit Lake Drainage Basin? D Yes No If yes. pursuant to state law application must be made to the
Inland Wetlands A enc rior to or simultaneous/ with a lication to the Plannin and Zanin Commission. 

Is the project in a public water supply watershed area? D Yes r'iif'No If yes, applicant shall notify Connecticut Water Company
and Commissioner of Public Health about the proposed project by certified mail retur�ceipt within 7 days of application (§B-3i(b). Copy of application, 
plans, and supporting documents must accompany notice. Proof of notice and copies of return receipts must be provided to the Planning Department. 

<(O}(joo 





















Town of Ellington, CT February 24, 2025

Property Information

Property ID 017 022 0008
Location 1 NUTMEG DR
Owner R+S GERBER CONSTRUCTION LLC

MAP FOR REFERENCE ONLY
NOT A LEGAL DOCUMENT

Town of Ellington, CT makes no claims and no warranties,
expressed or implied, concerning the validity or accuracy of
the GIS data presented on this map.

Geometry updated 11/11/2021
Data updated daily

Print map scale is approximate.
Critical layout or measurement
activities should not be done using
this resource.

1" = 248.35615111255555 ft



Parcel Data And Values Outbuildings Sales Permits

The Assessor’s of�ce is responsible for the maintenance of records on the ownership of properties. Assessments are computed at 70% of the estimated market value of real property at the time of the 
last revaluation which was 2020. 

Information on the Property Records for the Municipality of Ellington was last updated on 2/21/2025.

Property Summary Information

Building 1

Category: Industrial Use: Warehouse GLA: 5,736

Stories: 1.00 Construction: Steel Year Built: 2003

Heating: Forced Hot Air Fuel: Natural Gas Cooling Percent: 100

Siding: Pre-Finish Metal/Brick Veneer Roof Material: Enamel Metal Shingle Beds/Units: 0

Special Features

Attached Components

 

Back To Search                       View Field Card                       Print View

Building 

Information Published With Permission From The Assessor

data:image/png;base64,#.jpg
data:image/png;base64,#.jpg
https://www.propertyrecordcards.com/SearchMaster.aspx?towncode=048
https://www.propertyrecordcards.com/PrintPage.aspx?towncode=048&uniqueid=20020175












 

   

Town of Ellington          

Planning Department 

MEMO 
 
DATE: March 26, 2025 
 
TO: Planning and Zoning Commission        
     
FROM: Barbra Galovich, Land Use Assistant     
 
RE: Review of design elements for Z202502 - R&S Gerber Construction, LLC, owner/ 

applicant, to construct an 80’x100’ addition at 1 Nutmeg Drive, APN 017-022-0008, in 
an Industrial (I) zone.  

 
 
 
At a regular meeting on March 24, 2025, the Design Review Board reviewed the design 
elements for the above application and made the following motion: 

 
MOVED (HEMINWAY), SECONDED (BARLOW) AND PASSED UNANIMOUSLY TO 
GRANT A POSITIVE REFERRAL WITH RECOMMENDATION TO THE PLANNING & 
ZONING COMMISSION for the construction of an 80’x100’ addition at 1 Nutmeg Drive, APN 
017-022-0008, in an Industrial (I) zone. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Add green giant arborvitaes along the north side of the property to 
screen the facility. 
 

Enclosed is a copy of the Design Review Board meeting minutes for reference. 

 

 



Page 1 of 3 
2025_03-24 Ellington Design Review Board 

Regular Meeting Minutes 
 

 
DESIGN REVIEW BOARD 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
MONDAY, MARCH 24, 2025, 7:00 P.M. 

 
MEMBERS PRESENT:   Vice Chairman Gary Chaplin, Regular Members Ronald 

Stomberg, Katherine Heminway, and Landon Barlow  
 
MEMBERS ABSENT:     Chairman Michele Beaulieu  
 
STAFF PRESENT:   Lisa Houlihan, Town Planner (via Zoom) and Barbra 

Galovich, Recording Clerk 
 
I.   CALL TO ORDER: 
     Vice Chairman Gary Chaplin called the Design Review Board meeting to order at 

7:00 P.M. 
 
II. PUBLIC COMMENTS: None 

 
III. NEW BUSINESS: 

 
1. Review of design elements for R&S Gerber Construction, LLC, owner/ applicant, 

to construct an 80’x100’ addition at 1 Nutmeg Drive, APN 017-022-0008, in an 
Industrial (I) zone.  
 
Steven Gerber, 3 Stony Brook Trail, Ellington, CT, was present to represent the 
application. 
 
Steven Gerber said the application is for an additional 80x100 building for storage 
and garage space to the rear of the existing structure located a 1 Nutmeg Drive. 
The new addition is proposed to match the existing one with a green roof and same 
color siding. The front portion of the building is office space, the shop space is 
behind the front office. Vice Chairman Chaplin asked what prompted the addition.  
Steven noted there are multiple vehicles and equipment on the site, and they would 
like to park them in the proposed garage.  
 
Vice Chairman Chaplin asked if additional parking is needed for the proposed use. 
Steven Gerber responded that no additional parking is required for the project and 
no additional employees will be hired. Vice Chairman Chaplin inquired about the 
northern berm’s landscaping. Steven stated that the berm is established with grass 
seed and maintained twice a year.  Vice Chairman Chaplin noted the recreational 
fields located to the north and asked if they are visible from the site.  Steven said 

 

STATE OF CONNECTICUT – COUNTY OF TOLLAND 
INCORPORATED 1786 

TOWN OF ELLINGTON 
55 MAIN STREET – PO BOX 187 

ELLINGTON, CONNECTICUT  06029-0187 
www.ellington-ct.gov 

 
TEL. (860) 870-3120         TOWN PLANNER’S OFFICE  FAX (860) 870-3122 

 

 

http://www.ellington-ct.gov/


Page 2 of 3 
2025_03-24 Ellington Design Review Board 

Regular Meeting Minutes 
 

yes, depending on the time of year. Chairman Stomberg said the neighborhood 
was designed for industrial uses and he finds no issue with the addition and color 
selection.  Commissioner Heminway is fine with the project if the site is kept tidy. 
Lisa Houlihan stated the Planning & Zoning Commission may ask for plantings 
along the northern berm. Pursuant to Lisa’s request, John Colonese, Assistant 
Planner Wetlands Zoning Enforcement Officer, confirmed that the original 
approved site plan did not require plantings within that area. Lisa asked if the 
applicant was amendable to provide plantings. Commissioner Heminway 
suggested planting a row of green giant arborvitaes and offered to meet on site to 
review planting locations; Steven agreed to install plantings as suggested.   

 
    MOVED (HEMINWAY), SECONDED (BARLOW) AND PASSED UNANIMOUSLY 

TO GRANT A POSITIVE REFERRAL WITH RECOMMENDATION TO THE 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION to construct an 80’x100’ addition at 1 
Nutmeg Drive, APN 017-022-0008, in an Industrial (I) zone. 

 
RECOMMENDATION: Add green giant arborvitaes along the north side of the 
property to screen the facility. 

 
IV. ADMINISTRATIVE BUSINESS: 
 

1. Approval of the January 7, 2025, Special Meeting Minutes 
 
MOVED (HEMINWAY), SECONDED (CHAPLIN) AND PASSED UNANIMOUSLY 
TO APPROVE JANUARY 7, 2025, SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES AS WRITTEN. 
 

2. Election of officers 
 
a.  Chairman  
 
MOVED (CHAPLIN) TO NOMINATE (COMMISSIONER BEAULIEU) FOR 
CHAIRMAN OF THE DESIGN REVIEW BOARD FOR 2025.  
  
COMMISSIONER (BEAULIEU) ACCEPTED THE NOMINATION BY PROXY. 
HEARING NO FURTHER NOMINATIONS, NOMINATIONS CLOSED.  
 
MOVED (HEMINWAY), SECONDED (BARLOW) AND PASSED UNANIMOUSLY 
TO ELECT (COMMISSIONER BEAULIEU) FOR CHAIRMAN OF THE DESIGN 
REVIEW BOARD FOR 2025. 
 
b.  Vice Chairman 
 
MOVED (BARLOW) TO NOMINATE (COMMISSIONER CHAPLIN) FOR VICE 
CHAIRMAN OF THE DESIGN REVIEW BOARD FOR 2025. 
 
COMMISSIONER (CHAPLIN) ACCEPTED THE NOMINATION. HEARING NO 
FURTHER NOMINATIONS, NOMINATIONS CLOSED.  
 



Page 3 of 3 
2025_03-24 Ellington Design Review Board 

Regular Meeting Minutes 
 

MOVED (HEMINWAY), SECONDED (STOMBERG) AND PASSED 
UNANIMOUSLY TO ELECT (COMMISSIONER CHAPLIN) FOR VICE 
CHAIRMAN OF THE DESIGN REVIEW BOARD FOR 2025. 
 

3. Review of draft amendments to the Design Review Guide to align with statutory 
language and discuss text changes to incorporate design elements consistent 
with recently approved site development plans. 

 
Lisa Houlihan explained the reasons for updating the Design Review Guide is to 
be consistent with changes to Connecticut statutes regarding the term character 
and to include different design elements required for recent site development plans 
like Starbucks and the Dollar General store. Lisa also suggested updating some 
photos in the guide. The Board would like to conduct a comprehensive review and 
discuss proposed changes at a future meeting.  Lisa encouraged commissioners 
to contact her with questions or if she may provide additional guidance. 

 
4. Correspondence/Discussion: 
 

a. Notice of Ellington Public Budget Presentations - Community Voice Channel 
on March 20, 2025, Senior Center and Virtual Zoom Meeting on May 1, 2025, 
and Hall Memorial Library and Virtual Zoom Meeting on May 3, 2025.  

 
V. ADJOURNMENT:  

  
MOVED (HEMINWAY), SECONDED (CHAPLIN) AND PASSED UNANIMOUSLY 
TO ADJOURN THE DESIGN REVIEW BOARD MEETING AT 7:22 P.M. 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
__________________________ 
Barbra Galovich, Recording Clerk 





Town of Ellington  

Planning Department 
57 Main ST., PO Box 187, Ellington, CT, 06029/Phone: 860-870-3120/Email: planner@ellington-ct.gov 

 

MEMORANDUM 
DATE: March 7, 2025 
 
TO: Planning & Zoning Commission 
 
FROM: Lisa M. Houlihan, AICP, Town Planner 
 

RE: Proposed Text Amendment to Local Zoning and Subdivision Regulations to Reflect the 
Current Connecticut Guidelines for Soil Erosion and Sediment Control and Encourage 
Low Impact Development Techniques. 

 
As discussed at the last regular meeting, regulation amendments are proposed to update reference 
to the latest Connecticut Guidelines for Soil Erosion and Sediment Control (published September 
30, 2023, effective on March 30, 2024) and to encourage Low Impact Development techniques to 
comply with Ellington’s Stormwater Management Plan.   

Draft new text is underlined, draft text to be deleted is 
strikethrough, otherwise text is as adopted. 

 

ELLINGTON ZONING REGULATIONS 

6.4.2 Definitions 
Low Impact Development means a site design strategy that maintains, mimics, or replicates 
predevelopment hydrology through the use of numerous site design principles and small-scale 
treatment practices distributed throughout a site to manage runoff volume and water quality at the 
source.  

 
6.4.5 Erosion & Sediment Control Plan  

A. To be eligible for certification, a soil erosion and sediment control plan shall contain 

proper provisions to adequately control accelerated erosion and sedimentation and 
reduce the danger from storm water runoff on the proposed site based on the best 
available technology.  Such principles, methods and practices necessary for certification 
are found in the Connecticut Guidelines for Soil Erosion and Sediment Control (2002 
March 30, 2024) as AMENDED.  Alternative principles, methods and practices, like Low 
Impact Development are encouragedmay be used with prior approval of the 
Commission. 

 



6.4.6 Minimum Acceptable Standards  
A. Plans for soil erosion and sediment control shall be developed in accordance with these 

regulations using the principles as outlined in Chapters 3 and 4 of the Connecticut 

Guidelines for Soil Erosion and Sediment Control (2002March 30, 2024), as AMENDED.  
Soil erosion and sediment control plans shall result in a development that:  minimizes 
erosion and sedimentation during construction; is stabilized and protected from erosion 
when completed; and does not cause off-site erosion and/or sedimentation. 

B. The minimum standards for individual measures are those in the Connecticut Guidelines 
for Soil Erosion and Sediment Control (2002March 30, 2024) as AMENDED.  The 
Commission may grant exceptions when requested by the applicant if technically sound 
reasons are presented. 

C. The appropriate method from the Connecticut Guidelines for Soil Erosion and Sediment 
Control (2002March 30, 2024) as AMENDED shall be used in determining peak flow 
rates and volumes of runoff unless an alternative method is approved by the 

Commission. 

10.2  Definitions 
Low Impact Development is a site design strategy that maintains, mimics, or replicates 
predevelopment hydrology through the use of numerous site design principles and small-scale 
treatment practices distributed throughout a site to manage runoff volume and water quality at the 
source.  
 
 

ELLINGTON SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS 
4.15  Soil Erosion and Sediment Control Plan - Where the cumulative area of disturbance will exceed 1/2 

acre, a plan meeting the standards contained in "Connecticut Guidelines for Soil Erosion and 

Sediment Control" (1965 March 30, 2024) shall be submitted and followed in the development of 

the subdivision, as the same may be amended from time to time.  Alternative principles, methods 
and practices, like Low Impact Development are encouraged 



2025_02-24 Ellington Planning & Zoning Commission 
Regular Meeting Minutes 

Page 1 of 3  

STATE OF CONNECTICUT – COUNTY OF TOLLAND 
INCORPORATED 1786 

TOWN OF ELLINGTON 
55 MAIN STREET – PO BOX 187 

ELLINGTON, CONNECTICUT 06029-0187 
www.ellington-ct.gov 

TEL. (860) 870-3120     TOWN PLANNER’S OFFICE        FX (860) 870-3122 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

MONDAY, FEBRUARY 24, 2025, 7:00 PM 
 

IN-PERSON ATTENDANCE: TOWN HALL ANNEX, 57 MAIN STREET, ELLINGTON, CT 
REMOTE ATTENDANCE: ZOOM VIDEO CONFERENCING 

(ATTENDEES BELOW WERE IN PERSON UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED) 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:    CHAIRMAN ARLO HOFFMAN, VICE CHAIRMAN SEAN KELLY, 

REGULAR MEMBERS WILLIAM HOGAN, F. MICHAEL FRANCIS, AND 
MICHAEL SWANSON 

MEMBERS ABSENT: SECRETARY ROBERT SANDBERG, JR., REGULAR MEMBER JON 
MOSER, AND ALTERNATE JEREMIAH WILLIAMS 

STAFF PRESENT: LISA HOULIHAN, TOWN PLANNER, AND BARBRA GALOVICH, 
RECORDING CLERK  

I. CALL TO ORDER:  Chairman Alro Hoffman called the meeting to order at 7:00 pm. 
 

II. PUBLIC COMMENTS (On non-agenda items): None 
 

III. PUBLIC HEARINGS:  
 
1. S202501 – Ellington McIntire, LLC, owner/applicant, request to re-subdivide 153 Webster Road, 

APN 185-001-0000, a 49.18 +/- acre parcel, to create one new 1.11 +/- acre parcel, in a Rural 
Agricultural Residential (RAR) Zone. 
 
Time: 7:01 pm 
Seated: Hoffman, Kelly, Hogan, Francis, and Swanson 
 
Mark Peterson, PE, Gardner & Peterson Associates, LLC, 178 Hartford Turnpike, Tolland, CT 
was present to represent the application.   
 
Mark Peterson stated the owner of the property is looking for a one-lot re-subdivision. Mark 
showed the location of the parcel and noted it was previously approved in 2022 for a two-lot 
subdivision. The proposed lot will be 1.11 acres with roughly 170 linear feet of frontage. The 
dwelling will be served by a well and septic system.  The erosion and sediment control measures 
along with the proposed seeding schedule are on the plans.   
 
Mark Peterson stated the Town Engineer, Dana Steele’s, comments from an email dated 
February 11, 2025, have been addressed.  Mark explained that the open space requirement was 
previously met, and the open space set-aside was provided on the opposite side of Webster 
Road. 
 
Chairman Hoffman asked if there was a conceptual development plan for the undeveloped portion 
of the property, and Mark Peterson reviewed the plan.  Mark noted the current proposal was 
reviewed by the Ellington Inland Wetland Agency and a positive referral was received. 
 

http://www.ellington-ct.gov/


2025_02-24 Ellington Planning & Zoning Commission 
Regular Meeting Minutes 

Page 2 of 3  

Commissioner Hogan asked about the note on sheet 3 of 4 of the plans stating “10’ temporary 
grading easement across the southerly property line of Lot #3 in favor of Ellington McIntire, LLC”. 
Mark Peterson explained that the easement provides an area that will be graded when the future 
private road is constructed.  
 
Lisa Houlihan, Town Planner, referred to Section 4.19B of the Ellington Subdivision Regulations 
requiring street trees to be provided, noting compliance can be met by preserving existing trees 
or planting new ones. Mark Peterson agreed to meet the street tree requirement as a condition of 
approval. 

 
MOVED (KELLY) SECONDED (HOGAN) AND PASSED UNANIMOUSLY TO CLOSE THE 
PUBLIC HEARING FOR S202501 – Ellington McIntire, LLC, owner/applicant, request to re-
subdivide 153 Webster Road, APN 185-001-0000, a 49.18 +/- acre parcel, to create one new 1.11 
+/- acre parcel, in a Rural Agricultural Residential (RAR) Zone. 

 
MOVED (KELLY) SECONDED (HOGAN) AND PASSED UNANIMOUSLY TO APPROVE WITH 
CONDITION S202405– Ellington McIntire, LLC, owner/applicant, request to re-subdivide 153 
Webster Road, APN 185-001-0000, a 49.18 +/- acre parcel, to create one new 1.11 +/- acre 
parcel, in a Rural Agricultural Residential (RAR) Zone. 
 
CONDITION: 
PURSUANT TO SECTION 4.19.B OF THE ELLINGTON SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS, 
STREET TREES SHALL BE PROVIDED. 

 
IV. NEW BUSINESS:   

 
1. Memo from Town Planner for Potential Regulation Amendments to Reflect the Updated 

Connecticut Guidelines for Soil Erosion and Sediment Control and Include Low Impact 
Development Standards. 

 
The commission reviewed the proposed changes and endorsed processing formal applications. 
 
BY CONSENSUS, RECEIVED APPLICATION AND SCHEDULED A PUBLIC HEARING ON 
MARCH 31, 2025, 7PM, TOWN HALL ANNEX, 57 MAIN STREET, ELLINGTON, CT AND 
ZOOM VIDEO CONFERENCING FOR TOWN OF ELLINGTON, owner/applicant, for proposed 
Zoning Regulation Amendments to reflect the updated Connecticut Guidelines for Soil Erosion 
and Sediment Control and include Low Impact Development Standards. 

 
2. BY CONSENSUS, RECEIVED AND SCHEDULED A PUBLIC HEARING FOR MARCH 31, 

2025, 7PM, TOWN HALL ANNEX, 57 MAIN STREET, ELLINGTON, AND ZOOM VIDEO 
CONFERENCING FOR Z202501 – West Meadow Associates, LLC, owner/ Kimberly Newman-
Savino (The Revival Room), applicant, pursuant to Table 4.1 Permitted Uses & Uses Requiring 
Special Permit in Commercial & Industrial Zones request for Special Permit to allow a personal 
service business at 106 West Road, APN 028-011-0000, in a Planned Commercial (PC) zone. 

 
3. BY CONSENSUS, RECEIVED AND SCHEDULED A PUBLIC HEARING FOR MARCH 31, 

2025, 7PM, TOWN HALL ANNEX, 57 MAIN STREET, ELLINGTON, AND ZOOM VIDEO 
CONFERENCING FOR Z202502 – R&S Gerber Construction, LLC, owner/ applicant, request for 
modifications to Site Plan and Special Permit to construct an 80x100 addition at 1 Nutmeg Drive, 
APN 017-022-0008, in an Industrial (I) zone. 
 
 

V. ADMINISTRATIVE BUSINESS: 
 

1. Approval of January 27, 2025, Regular Meeting Minutes. 



2025_02-24 Ellington Planning & Zoning Commission 
Regular Meeting Minutes 

Page 3 of 3  

 
MOVED (SWANSON) SECONDED (KELLY) AND PASSED UNANIMOUSLY TO APPROVE 
JANUARY 27, 2025, REGULAR MEETING MINUTES AS WRITTEN. 
 

2. Election of Officers 
 
BY CONSENUS, THE ELECTION OF OFFICERS WAS TABLED TO MONDAY, MARCH 31, 
2025, PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING. 

 
3. Correspondence/Discussion: 

 
a. Ellington Affordable Housing Plan and Discussion Regarding Ellington Zoning Regulations 

3.6 Designed Multi-Family Zone and 3.6.7 Workforce Housing Provision. 
 

Lisa Houlihan stated two developers have expressed interest in multi-family housing 
developments in Ellington. The locations for potential development are 5 acres of 
undeveloped land at 135 West Road, in a Planned Commercial (PC) zone, and a 29-acre 
vacant parcel at 53 Wapping Wood Road, in a Rural Agricultural Residential (RAR) zone. The 
Wapping Wood Road parcel abuts the sanitary sewer area and is bordered by single-family 
homes and protected farmland. A conceptual plan was reviewed for Wapping Wood Road. 
The plan includes a mix of duplexes, triplexes, and 4-unit buildings. Due to high interest rates 
and increased building costs, the number of workforce units and limits of bedrooms do not 
pencil out. The developers asked if the commission would consider changing the regulations 
to decrease the number of workforce housing units from 20% to 10% and to allow more 
bedrooms. The developer suggested a fee in lieu of workforce housing units. For example, if 
the number of workforce units were 10%, $10,000 per workforce unit would be paid into an 
affordable housing fund for the Town to use in another location for affordable housing. The 
West Road parcel, where the Big Y is, is mostly developed. The owners have sought office, 
healthcare, and traditional commercial tenants with no success and asked the commission to 
revisit the idea of allowing a 3 to 4-story apartment complex on the vacant five acres of the 
property. The commission round tabled the proposed developments, potential regulation 
changes, and residential developments being built in other towns. Lisa agreed to research 
other town regulations and recently built affordable housing developments / fee in lieu of 
approvals and report back to the commission at next month’s meeting.  
 

b. Notice of Ellington Public Budget Presentations - Community Voice Channel on March 20, 
2025, Senior Center and Virtual Zoom Meeting on May 1, 2025, and Hall Memorial Library 
and Virtual Zoom Meeting on May 3, 2025. 

 
VI. ADJOURNMENT:   

 
MOVED (FRANCIS) SECONDED (SWANSON) AND PASSED UNANIMOUSLY TO ADJOURN 
THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MEETING AT 7:53 PM. 

 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Barbra Galovich, Recording Clerk 


	PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
	REGULAR MEETING AGENDA
	MONDAY, MARCH 31, 2025, 7:00 PM
	V. ADMINISTRATIVE BUSINESS:
	VI. ADJOURNMENT:
	Next Regular Meeting is scheduled for April 28, 2025.
	2002_11-01 IW200245 - Z200245  site plan.pdf
	Scan 2025-2-26 (11,37,27)
	Scan 2025-2-26 (11,38,7)

	2025_02-24 PZC  Minutes - Final.pdf
	PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
	REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
	MONDAY, FEBRUARY 24, 2025, 7:00 PM
	III. PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	1. S202501 – Ellington McIntire, LLC, owner/applicant, request to re-subdivide 153 Webster Road, APN 185-001-0000, a 49.18 +/- acre parcel, to create one new 1.11 +/- acre parcel, in a Rural Agricultural Residential (RAR) Zone.
	Time: 7:01 pm
	Seated: Hoffman, Kelly, Hogan, Francis, and Swanson
	Mark Peterson, PE, Gardner & Peterson Associates, LLC, 178 Hartford Turnpike, Tolland, CT was present to represent the application.
	Mark Peterson stated the owner of the property is looking for a one-lot re-subdivision. Mark showed the location of the parcel and noted it was previously approved in 2022 for a two-lot subdivision. The proposed lot will be 1.11 acres with roughly 170...
	Mark Peterson stated the Town Engineer, Dana Steele’s, comments from an email dated February 11, 2025, have been addressed.  Mark explained that the open space requirement was previously met, and the open space set-aside was provided on the opposite s...
	Chairman Hoffman asked if there was a conceptual development plan for the undeveloped portion of the property, and Mark Peterson reviewed the plan.  Mark noted the current proposal was reviewed by the Ellington Inland Wetland Agency and a positive ref...
	Commissioner Hogan asked about the note on sheet 3 of 4 of the plans stating “10’ temporary grading easement across the southerly property line of Lot #3 in favor of Ellington McIntire, LLC”. Mark Peterson explained that the easement provides an area ...
	Lisa Houlihan, Town Planner, referred to Section 4.19B of the Ellington Subdivision Regulations requiring street trees to be provided, noting compliance can be met by preserving existing trees or planting new ones. Mark Peterson agreed to meet the str...
	MOVED (KELLY) SECONDED (HOGAN) AND PASSED UNANIMOUSLY TO CLOSE THE PUBLIC HEARING FOR S202501 – Ellington McIntire, LLC, owner/applicant, request to re-subdivide 153 Webster Road, APN 185-001-0000, a 49.18 +/- acre parcel, to create one new 1.11 +/- a...
	MOVED (KELLY) SECONDED (HOGAN) AND PASSED UNANIMOUSLY TO APPROVE WITH CONDITION S202405– Ellington McIntire, LLC, owner/applicant, request to re-subdivide 153 Webster Road, APN 185-001-0000, a 49.18 +/- acre parcel, to create one new 1.11 +/- acre par...
	CONDITION:
	PURSUANT TO SECTION 4.19.B OF THE ELLINGTON SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS, STREET TREES SHALL BE PROVIDED.
	IV.  NEW BUSINESS:
	V. ADMINISTRATIVE BUSINESS:

	2025_03-31 PZC Agenda.pdf
	PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
	REGULAR MEETING AGENDA
	MONDAY, MARCH 31, 2025, 7:00 PM
	V. ADMINISTRATIVE BUSINESS:
	VI. ADJOURNMENT:
	Next Regular Meeting is scheduled for April 28, 2025.




